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(d) RJR-Mllcdonald was similarly required to file domestic consumption reports 

detailing tobacco products manufactured and intended for cOilsumption in . 

Canada. 1n representing the quantum of tobacco products manufactured for 

domestio consumption, RJR·Macdonald did not include its shipments to its co-

conspirators, and expressly understated lind misrepresented sllch amotlnts. 

68. These were fraudulent representations, They were made with the intent to initiate and 

Jom1 the conspiracy to smuggle tobacco products into Canada, tax not paid, and to defraud the 

plaintiff, The plaintiff relied upon RJR's fraudulent misrepresentations and pennitted thq sham 

export of cigarettes and tobacco, tal( free, The plaintiff'did not take its usual steps to oollect 

taxes and duties upon these tobacco products intended for consumption in Canada, 

69, Th" result of the conspiracy was that massive quantities of cigarettes and tobacco were 

smuggled into Canada, after sham CXJl0l1, tax 1I0t paid, fi'om Canada to FTZs in the United 

States, shipment to Akwesasne and other points of entry and importation across the border back 

into Canada, leading to the direct and indireot distribution of the tobacco products, tax not paid, 

throughout Canada on the black market. 

70. Accordingly, the smuggling also deprived the plaintiff of applicable lmpOlt dmies and 

(axes, 

Consplrncy Expands to Rico 

.'-".,.--'.'''' 

71. In January 1992, the Govenuncnt of Canada Imposed significant export taKes On 

cigarettes, specifically (0 combat suspected sm\lggling of exported cigarettes back into Canada .. 



At the time (and eVer after), RJR consistently falsoly represented to the plaintiff tnat il was not , 

involved in the smuggling but tbat smuggling was the work of organized crime. 

72. The RJR Group set about to avoid this 'oxport tax and feed the conspiracy to evade 

applicable import duties IUld GST by literally transporting and then reassembling Canadian 

cigarette production lines in Puerto Rico to manufacture Canadian ciga:rettes there, intentionally 

manufactured for distribution and cons\1mption within Canada and in fact ultimatelydistribuled 

and consumed within Canada. 

n. There was not and never had been II market for RJR,'s Canadian style cigare!tes in Puerto 

Rico or the Caribbean. RJR·Macdonald's purpose in transferring production to Puerto Rico was 

to establish an even lower cost (by avoiding the new export tax) for Canadian cigarettes to be 

smuggled back into Canada, imp0I! tax not paid, through its established iJ1egal distribution 

channels and through additional srmiggling co-conspirators. 

74. RJR-Macdonald did not have legal or operational control ofRJR Puerto Rico. The parent 

ofRJR Puerto Rico, R1R U.S., was active in expanding the conspiracy 10 include a PUeo.rlO Rican 

smuggling operation. The conspiracy now also encompassed the following agreements and 

concerted action by the conspirators (now RJR-Macdormid, RJR International, RJR Puerto Rico 

and lUR U.S.): 

(a) RJR-Macdonald, which held the licence for its };:xport "A" brand cigarettes, 

licensed its related entity, RJR U.S., to manufacture thc Export "A" brand, 



(b) RJR U.S. in concert with RJR International, directed their related entity, RJR 

Puerto Rico, to manufacture Canadian cigarettes using Virginia leaf tobacco 

expOlted from RJR-Macdonald plants in Ontario; 

(c) lUR International and RJR"Macdonald placed orders for the Canadian cigarettes 

manufactured in Puerto Rico through RJR International's offices in Winston-

Salem. 11,e shipments were routed through various chUlmels and co-conspirators, 

who rarely took physical possession of the cigarettes, to FTZs, to Ak",;,esasne. and 
. ~!V 

to other points of illegal entry. From there, the cigarettes were smuggled without 

the payment of import taxes into Canada and {hen sold on the black mal'ket; and 

(d) RJR International, RJR-Macdonald and RJR Puerto Rico employed ci(cuitous 

routes and numerous entities to smuggle the cigarettes into Canada, (0 conceal the 

conspiracy. Destinations included (Ile Caribbean islands of Aruba, Antigua and 

St. Maarten, and intermediaries and agents such as lDF in Aruba (defined below). 

75. Although RJR Puerto Rico invoiced its Caribbean agents so that they would appear (0 be 

bona fide purchasers, it was agreed tlley were not liable (0 pay. Rather, an intenncdiary simply 

re-invoiced those nelLt in the c.hAin to whom the products were actuallY shipped. The proceeds 

from sale (ook a circuitous route in reverse. Initially, cllstomers remitted payments directly (0 

RJR Puerto Rico. Later, the funds were laundered through an intermediary who passed on the 

monies it received to RJR Puerto Rico andiol' other RJR Group entities, making the funds more 

dIfficult to trace. 

76. por instance, Bryan Harms ("Harms") operated IDlernational Duty Free Trading N.V. 

("IDF"), an irnpor1Jexport company on the Caribbean island of Aruba. Harms was known to the 



·28· 

RJR Group, and had dealt for m~ll1y years with RJR International and its Special Markets 

Division, His contacts were Brock and Gabriele. He had facilitated the shipment ofRJR Group 

cigarettes into o!llllr j\1risdictions. 

77. Gabriele, Brock nnd RJR Intemational now leveraged this relationship again to act in 

concert with Hanus to further expand illegal channels of distribution for RJR·Macdonald's 

tohacco products. 

78. 111 1992, Gabriele 011 behalf of RJR International's Special Markets DiVision, approached 

Harms. They agreed to the following scheme, An RJR International employee, Harold Hinson 

("I'!inson"), located in the company's headquarters at Winston.Salem, called IDF on a regUlar 

basis and advised that RjR Puerto Rico would be making a shipment of tobacco products to !DF. 

I·Jillson provided IDF with onward shipping and billing instructions. rUR Puerto Rico faxed 

invoices (for which IDF was not liable) and bills of lading ahead of tile shipments, Often, 

however, RJR Puerto Rico did not even bother with this formality, Al1lba port authorities would 

just advise !DF that its contaitlers had arrived at the port, providing IDF its first notice of another 

shipment fi'om the RJR Group, 

79. Hamls then forwarded the shipments into the illegal cha!mels of distribution, initially 

according to instructions received from RJR International aud later from Roland Kostantos of 

RJR-Macdonald and Peter MacGregor on behalf ofNBI. IDF made major shipments to LBt and 

1.R. Attea WholesaJe ("Attea"), a,mong others., 

80. In 1992 and 1993 alone, in furtherance of the conspiracy described in this claim, RJR 

manufactured approximately 2 billion Export "A" cigarettes at its P\1erto Rican manufacturing 

facilities, all to be smuggled into Canada, tax not paid, 'nlis aWl of the conspiracy continued in 



business until at least 1998, even though the 1992 expOl'll>lX wo. rolled buok in April 1992, tWI) 

months after it was imposed, 

8\. RJR·Macdonald ensured thut Puerto Rican packaging mirrored Canadian packaging, in a 

further effort to facilitate smuggling and sales in Canada. It included text in the French 

language, as required for cigarettes manufactured in Canada f()r consumption in the Canadian 

market, 

82. RJR did not transfer Canadian tobacco and manufacturing facilities to Puerto Rico for a 

lawful, commercial purpose, The tobacco WaS intended for return and consumption from where 

it came, as Canadian cigarettes sold to C!\Iladians in Canada, without payment of taxes, This 

scheme was simply one element of an ongoing conspiracy to ·evadc taxes and smuggle cigarettes 

into Canada., import tax not paid, and was also to conceal the involvement of RJR Group 

companies, and insulate their assets from exposure and liability, 

83, RJR·Macdonuld also entered into an agreement with Standard Commercial of Wilson, 

North Carolina to package RJR·Macdonald's fine cut tobacco. Again, RJR-Macdonald used 

packaging that was indistinguishable to the average consumer from domestic Canadian 

packaging, Since tbere was Virtually no U,S. market for this product, almost all of it was, as 

intended, smuggled back inolo Canada. 

)'he Conspiracy Expands Again: R.lR Creates its own Smuggling CompallY 

84. The volume of cigarettes being smuggled grew to slIch significance that tllC conspirators 

became increasingly nervous about potel)tiai exposure of their illegal conduct. 
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85. The conspirators therefore set about to further insulate the principal operating oompanies 

and individuals involved and to protect tbe asscls of the RJR Group from judgment and 

execution. 

86. IUR Tobacco, the senior holding company in the RJR Group, now became directly 

involved in the scheme as a conspirator, It agreed to incorporate, as its own wholly-owned 

subsidiary, the defendant Northern Brands International, hlc. for the purpose of constructing lIll 

illegal business. 

87. In \993, RIR Tobacco with RJR lntemlltional, RJR-Macdonald, and the semor executives 

of each, established the new elltity, NBI. The RJR Group's purpose for creating NBI was to 

further the conspiracy, 10 ensure its concealment and to insulate their assets. 

88. In March 1993, Peter MacGregor ("MacGregor"), a senior finance executive at RJR­

Macdonald reporting through Neumann to Lang, made a presentation at RJR Group headquarters 

in Winston-Salem, during R1R lntemalional's annual financial conference. Prescnt were senior 

corporate officers of various RJR Group companies, including RJR.U,S., RJRTobacco and RJR 

Intemational. For example, RJR International's Chief Financial Officer, Jaap Uittenbogaard, was 

in attendance. MacGregor had prepared a presentation, and at the meeting detailed the reasons to 

incorporate and operale NBJ to insulate the RJR Group from its intentional failure to comply 

with Canadian laws, 

89. NBl was inserted into the conspiracy and operated seamlessly as a vehicle 10 shelter and 

protect the lUR Group from ultimate detection and liability. NBI operated as a clearing house. 

for smuggling and for distributing the proceeds fmm slnuggling. 
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90. RJR-Macdonald nominally transferred Thompson and MacGregor to NEl and they 

relocated \0 Winston-Salem. Their rcsponsibillty for the Canadian market, however, remained 

ullchanged. 

91. NEI, ait\l.OJlgh structured to give the appearance of independence from R1R-Macdonald, 

was in fact I{l. sham in .Jbat: 

(a) while it was a wholly-owned subsidiary of RJR Tobacco and l1ad no traceable 

corporate relationship with RJR·Macdonald, it was desi~led to sell exclusively 

cigarettes and tobacco intend~.d only for the Canadian market; 

(b) in f<,ality, the daily business ofNBl w", earned on by two Canadians: Thompson 

and MacGregor (with their assistant); 

(0) its offices were physically located within the offices ofRJR Inte1'llational; 

(el) Thompson and MacGregor, while physically located at RJR Intcl11ational. 

continued to report directly to RJR"Macdonald~ 

(e) Lang directed the operations ofN)31 and its employees; 

(I) RJR-Macdonald set tobacco prices for NBI; 

(g) NBl's profits were consolidated with those ofRJR·Macdonald; 

(h) NBI's operating costs were charged back to RJR-Macdonald; and 

(il RlR Tobacco had existing U,S. operations (RJR U.S.), Canadian operations (RJR­

Macdonald) and mtcro.tional operations (RJR International) ull of which were 
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alrcac.ly sclling RJR-Macdonald's Export "A" cigm'cttes in their respective 

legitimate markets. 

92. The framework of each transaction followed one of two typical patterns, depending on the 

source of the tobacco products. 

93, Where sourced from Canada: 

(a) RJR-Macdonald manufactured CUlludian cigarettes and other tobacco at its 

Canaelian manufactnring fucilities in Montreal; 

(b) RJR-MacdonaJd falsely represented to the plaintiff that the tobacco products were 

for eXpolt and Were not intended for consumption in Canada; 

(c) the tobacco products were shipped to FTZs in New York state where title to the 

product was transferred to NBl; 

(d) representatives of. for example. LBL (most often Robert Tavano) telephoned 

'thompson at NBl's offices in Winston,Salem to oreler the tobacco, already 

physically located at the FTZs, Thompson gave Tavano the purchase pdce; 

(e) LBL paid NBI for rhe tobacco by wite transfer from LEVs bank in Massena, New 

York to NBl's bank account: 

(I) NBI then paid IUR,Macdonald for the tobacco products by two monthly 

payments. 'rhe first was wired to RJR-MacdonaJd's bank in Toronto and styled as 

a "royalty cheque". At times, royalty cheques equalle<l one million dollars per 

month. The second was significantly larger and represented most of the proceeds 
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received for the tobacco. While the propo11iollS and payees varied ITom 

transaction to transaction, this larger amount was wired to the accounts of various 

RJR entities: RJR-Macdonald, RJR Puelio Rico and RJR Intemational; and 

(g) after receiving the payments, RJR-MacdonaJd notified the FfZ to transfer (itle to 

LBL whie)1 then shipped the tobacco to suppliers on (he Akwesasne Reservation 

for smuggling into Canada. 

94. Where the cigarettes were sourced from Puerto Rico, the pattern was as described in 

COITcspondencc dated September 29, 1993 from MacGregor on behalf of NB1 (0 Harms. This 

correspondence confirmed how RJR orchestrated every step of Ihe trllnsaction through to 

ultimate dclivery to the consumer. The correspondence confirmed iliat NBI: 

(a) prepared sales memoranda describing price, sales data, any special lemls, 

shipment details and other par1icu)ars; 

(b) reviewed the financial terms oflhe transaction through its finance group to ensure 

compliance with company sales policy and customer profiles; 

(0) prepared order forms for the Caribbean intennedillries; 

(d) confimled directly to RJR Puerto Rico the approved sales orders and authorized 

the filling ofilie orders by RJR Puerto Rico; 

(e) sent pro forma sales invoices and outbound bills of lading together with 

certificates of origin and title transfer forms to lDF (Harms' company) and 

C+.JT77.f"" 
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warehouse release authorization forms. NBI dictated that IDF Md the Aruba port 

would not release product until this documcntation was received; 

(f) arranged for the daily notification by !DF and Aruba \0 NBl Finance of all title 

transfers; 

(g) monitored the specific due dates for receivables and communicated with 

customers before the due date to ~UTange for the wire transfer to the appropriate 

RJR Puerto Rico bank accounts; and 

(h) uuthoJized (and provided pro forma authorization letters) to release the product in 

North America to the notional wholesalers, in many instances, J.R. Attee 

Wholesale ("Attee"). 

95. Tins of fine cut tobacco smuggled into Canada contained the fhudulent 

misrepresentation "Manufactured by Northern Brands International, Inc. Winston-Salem, North 

Carolina, 27102, under licence from RJR-Macdonald Inc." NBI did not manufacture anything. 

The defendants intended to disguise the fact that NBI was merely a shell, and mislead the reader 

into believing thaI it was a U.s. ""Uty of substance, with it. own mmllfacturing fllcilitie, and 

responsibilities. 

96. The conspirators (now all the defendant corporations of the RJR Group) further expanded 

the conspiracy and entered into fraudulent and unlawful agreements with other co-conspirators, 

including: 

(a) 1.R. Attca Wholesale ("Atte.") - which operated fyom a principal place of 

b\\siness at 294 Ed Harris Road, Ashland City. Tennessee 37015 and 1010 
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Niagara Street, Buffalo, New York. Attca is and was affiliated with EHA 

International and, from time to time, purohased tobacco in the name of its customs 

broker which it controlled, AN. Derringer. Mlea also had a relationship with 

Harms and IDF. Attea pUl'chased Export .oN cigarettes fi'om the Special Markets 

Division of RJR International and fi'olll NBl sourced from RJR·Macdonald and 

from RJR Puerto Rico. Attea sold tobacco to customers on the Akwesasne 

Reservation. 

(b) Bensen Intemational Tobacco ("Bensen") - Bensen's principal place of business 

was 3301 Bl Camino Riel, Suite 200, Athertc>n, California 94027. It wire 

transferred money from California to RJR·Macdonald's offices in Toronto, 

Canada and to Winston·Salem, (to NET andtor RJR International -- Special 

Markets), all for the purchase of Canadian manufactured tobacco "exported" out 

of Canada for smuggling back in. Bensen purchased from both RJR-Macdonald 

and NBl and transferred products to Akwesasnc for smuggling back into Canada; 

(c) Springbok Trading Company ("Springbok") - Springbok is located in I-Iamllton, 

Bemmda. It purchased fine aut tobacco from RJR·Macdonald and cigarettes from 
1-:\''''(''''-

RJR Puerto Rico for transfer through Akwesasne and smuggling back into 

Canada; 

(d) Pine Partnership Inc. ("PineH
) - a company operated by Robert and Lewis Tavano 

from 2025 Pine Avenue, Niagara FaJ\s, New York and 643 19'" Street, Niagara 
\.:)'(f) 

Falls, New York As described earlier in this claim Pine Partnership smuggled 



Export "A" cigarettes manufactured by RJK·Macdonald in Montreal, Canada and 

lUR PUerto Rico in Puerto Rico; 

(c) BOL Import/Export Limited ("BOL") - located in the Caribbean island of Saint 

Maa.1en. It obtained tobacco for Pin~ Partnership from RJR Puerto Rico; 

(f) J.B.M.L. International Import / Export ("JBML") - JBML has a head office at 

1',0. Box 814, Buffalo, New York 14213 aJld directed the trllIlsfer of tobacco 

from RJR·Maedonald's production facilities in Montreal. Canada "in-bond" to the 
!~:;--? 

United States for sale through Akwesasneand smuggling back into Canada. It 

purchased from RlR-Macdonald, RJR lntemational- Special Markets and NBI; 

(g) SMT Inc. ("SMTn) - SMT is located at 10556 NW 26'h Street, SUite 101, Miami, 

Florida 33172. It sourced cigarettes from MontrCl\l. Canada and Puerto Rico, and 

purchased prodnct from RJR lntemational- Special Markets and NBI for transfer 

through customers on Akwesasne and sl~~~gling back into Canada; 

(h) S.V. Int'] Trading ("SV") - SV Was based in Montreal, Canada. It purchased 

cigarettes from RJR-Macdonald's Montreal production facilities and from NBI. It 

had the cigarettes shipped "in·bond" to Ail' Industrial Pa.rk 6, Plattsburgh. New 
/ .. c, 

York for transfer to customers on Akwesasne and sm~igting back into Canada; 

(i) Wade Supply & Service Inc.! Wade Group / Cardora ("Wade") - Wade is lOcated 

at 696 Rue: William, Montreal, Canada. Wade Gronp and ils principal, Gideon 

Loran, purchased cigarettes from R.TR-Macdonald in Monlreal and NBJ for 
0c) 

transfer through Akwesasne and smuggling back into Canada; and 
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(I) VTN - One of the ptincipals of LBL, Larry Miller, established a new company 

called VTN (named after his daughter Victotia, son-in-law Tim, and son Nick) to 

continue and further e)(pand the conspiracy. VTN in tum established a company 

in Antigua through which it pUl'chased and smuggled tobacco into Canada from 

RJR Puerto Rico, 

97, For all these entities, and others within the defendants' knowledge, the conspirators 

actively sought Ollt and supplied these smugglers, faoilltated their purchases, and acted in concert 

with them to import cigarettes into Canada through tbeir illegal channels of disttihution for sale, 

tax not paid, on the black market. 

'l>.j V"'O 

98. RIR-Macdonald and NBI provided marketing data to their co-conspirators and directed 

(\istdbution of the smuggled tobacco products (0 those markets in Canada where demand for 

them was highest. lUR"Macdonald, and Lang personally, directed coml,any personnel to explore 

with their co-conspirators possible additional smuggling points of entry into Canada to further 

advance the conspiracy. RJR-Macdonald, NBI and RJR International personnel flew to Alaska 

along with smugglers to scout opportunities there. 

The llIega. l'rofits 

99. l3y late 1993, R1R-Macdonald's Operating Committee was routinely discussing the 

smuggling scheme during its weekly meetings. Lang also repolted to senior officials from each 

of RJR International, RJR U.S. and RJR Tobacco (including the CEO of lUR Tobacco, James 

J olmslon) that NB! had net profits fot' the third quarter of 1993 alone of U.S. $58 million. 
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100. The Minutes of the Operating Committee meetings were subsequently u""troycd to 

prevent detection of the conspirators' involvement in NBI's illegal activities. 

101. Although 1993 was NBl's first yoar and it operate-<i for oniy a partial fiscal year, NEI 

accounted for fully 60 percent of the U.S. $100 million profit earned by RJR-Macdonalrl in 1993. 

Lang bragged that NBI was more profitable than the Ford Motor Company of Canada. 

102. Of eight billion cigarettes sold by RJR-Macdonald in 1993, fully five billion were sold by 

this newly created cntity, exclusi\lely in furtherance of its fraudulent business. 

103. Lang directed senior staff to conceal RJR's smuggling business. He cautioned 

employees against putting anylhing in writing that could be damaging. He hired investigators to 

search for tracing or bugging equipment on comp\lters and telephones at RJR-MBedonuld. The 

defendants were successful for years ill avoiding detection of their conspiracy. 

104. Lang directed that a separate sham office be set up across the street from RJR-

Macdonald's corporate offices In downtown Toronto, Ontario. Lang instructed senior 

management (including :Smith) to use that office when they made calls or othetwis() trunsacted 

smuggling business. Lang issu<',d phony business cords to Smith, representing that Smith worked 

for u "trading company" (of which Smith had nevcrheard). Telephones nt the sham office were 

(0 be answered in the name of this phony company_ All of this was carried out in an effc>rt to 

distance the defendants from what they knew to be illegal cOllduct and tM evasion, 

105. RJR TobaC<"A), the direot parent of NBl, knew of these activities, benefited from the 

proceeds of the conspiracy and actively encouraged the other conspirators at the RJR Group to 
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continue the smuggling scheme, make fraudulent representations to the plaintiff, and cover up 

and conceal. 

Defendants' Sophisticated Smllggling Operations Force Roll-back of Canadian TaxeN 

106. . The defendants' unlawful activities were extraordinarily successful. 

107. Smuggled cigarettes flooded the Canadian market. As the defendants had intended, 

Canada's National Strategy to Reduce Tobacco Use, particularly for teenagers and young adults, 

was thwalted and circumvented. Cigarette consumption was not reduced, 

108. The Government of Canada was eventually forced to act, in direct response to the 

concealed conspiracy and fraud of the defendants, to reduce the motivation for s~~'gling. In 

1994 the plaintiff dramatically decreased applicable taxes to reduce the retail price of cigarettes 

in Canada, 

109. The plaintiff, as it had for a few months in 1992, imposed an export tax on Canadian 

tobacco prodllctS, to reduce the economic incentive for the illegal importation to the Canadian 

market by organized crime, which the defendants continued to represent to the plaintiff was 

responsible for the smuggling. 

110. LBL and other co-conspirators complained to the defendants about the effects of the new 

tax roll-backs on their smuggling markets. There were meetings and communications among the 

defendants about the detrimental effect of these lower taxes on NBl and the profits it was 

generating. 

11 1. 1n April 1994, NEI reacted to the roll-back of Canadian taxes. MacGregor wrot.e to 

Derrick Wallace ("Wallace"), another executive at RJR-Macdonald, requesting an inventory 
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credit for NEI. MacGregor stated that the tax roll-back was having a severe IlTlpa~t on NBl's 

business and in order for NBI's smuggling customers to remain compctitiw, the price would 

have to be rr.duccd. 

112. Lang became involved. He instructed Wallace to obtain approval from RJR International 

to write-down the value of massive illventories of Canadian tobacco at FTZs in the United States. 

This write down permitted NBI to sell cigarettes at lower prices thus maintaining the differentia! 

on the black market in Canada between the price of smuggled cigarettes and the now lower 

priced cigarettes being sold legitimately. 

~I U'~'" 

113. Following the imposition of the el(port tax in 1994, the conspiracy to smuggle continued 

apace, including with tobacco sOllrced from Puerto Rico and North Carolina, as did the 

ftaudulent misrepresentations, denials of involvement and the defendants' efforts directed at the 

continuing fi'audulent concealment. 

DefendanW Continued FI'3\ldulent Misrepresentations and Fraudulent Concealment 

114. The defendants had anticipated that Canada would attempt to combat smuggling and stem 

the tide of illegal cigarettes coming into Canada. The defendants had planne<! to defeat these 

efforts. 

115, An essential component of the defendants' scheme was a sophisticated campaign of 

misinformation and deception designed and implemented to further the conspiracy IUld its 

objectives. The defendants ackllowledged that smuggling was occurring, but feigned ignOl1l11Ce 

about the identity of those orchestrating and implementing the scheme. They emphatically 

denied they had any invo\venumt in smuggling. 11le defendants went beyond mere denialR of 
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involvement uTI(l made repeated and vehement misrepresentations about those whon> they 

alleged were in fact responsible for the smuggling. 

116. 111cse denials and assertions were made fraudlllently. Their purpose and the message the 

defendants and the CTMC on their behalf delivered was that little could be done to stop the 

smuggling, that RJR was dealing only with legitimate wholesalers and did nol know the identity 

ofIlia criminals, and that the only means to combat smuggling was 10 roll back tobacco taxes and 

duties. 

117. These fraudulent misrepresentations and denials were made publicly, to the media and 

also privately to senior officials of the Canadian government with the twin purposes of bringing 

public pressure to bear on the plaintiff to roll back cigarette taxes while continuing in the 

meantime to throw Canada off the scent, so that the conspiracy and the stunning profits it 

generated could continue unabated. 

I 18. The truth was that they had agreed with these "legitimate wholesalers" that no tobacco 

products could be sold in the U.S., and that all must be sold illegally in Canada. They alsc> knew 

that they were insulated {i'om detection because they wcre distanced from those actually 

Iranspolting the products into Canada and were even further removed from those distributing the 

illegal tobacco products ill Canada. 

119. RJR·Macdonald ex.ecutlves and spokespeople (in-hous~ and CTMC) made repeated, 

conli'.'ll,ing and express denials and positive assertions that it was not involved or complicit in 

smuggling, Theso statements were made to the most senior levels of the Canadian government 

rcspoll9ible for the administration and enforcement of Canada's t~x and customs laws. 
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120. The CTMC on behalf of RJR-Macdonald instigated many of these meetings. The 

plaintiff reasonably relied upon representations tor and on behalf of RJR-Macdonald at these 

meetings that it was not involved with sn1uggling, wished it to end and would take all reasonable 

steps to cooperate with govemment in combating the problem. 

121. The RJR Group tailored its statements, meetings, press releases and reports to produce 

maximum impact on a specific targct audience. The RJR Group used a combination of 

statcments from RJR-Macdonald executives, from the CTMC on its behalf and from executives 

within other RJR Group companies, including ii'om the Chairman and CEO of RJR Tobacco in 

the United States, to accomplish its objective. 

122. The plaintiff received and relied in good faith upon these adamant and indignant denials, 

accepted the sincerity of the defendants' fraudulent offers of assistance and believed the "Big 

Lies" and misleading statements of RJR. 

Particulars of the False Denials ofinvolvcmcnt .lId Dishoncst Offers of Assistance 

123. The RJR Group, directly and through its agent the CTMC, made statements throughout 

the duration of the conspiracy on a consistent basis with the intention that Canada would 

continuc to rely upon them, which it did. For instance: 

(a) in an interview with the Globe & Mail on September 22, 1992 about RJR· 

Macdonald's manufacturing of Canadian brand cigarettes in PUC110 Rico, Robert 

Parker ("Parker"), President of the CTMC, was quoted as saying that there were 

"perfectly legitimate outlets for Canadian cigarettes outside the country, such as 

'snowbirds in Florida'll
; 
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(b) in identical letters dated October 2, 1992 from Parker to the Deputy Minister of 

National Revenue and the Deputy Solicitor General of Canada, Parker made 

reference to the "not infi'equent" accusation that the industry was in direct 

collusion with smugglers, and stated that "this is not true, and is levelled without 

an iota of evidence." In the same letter, Parker expressly blamed "organized 

crime" for smuggling and stated that the "greatest concern" of CTMC's three 

members including RJR-Macdonald was "a rise in tolerance on the part of the 

public for blatantly illegal activities"; 

(c) the Solicitor General responded to Parker'S letter, thanking Parker for 

communicating the CTMC's concerns in relation to tobacco smuggling, 

acknowledging the efforts that the industry was making to help, including the 

industry'S co-operation with government and law enforcement agencies, and 

encouraging the CTMC and its members to continue to work with government to 

get the message across that contraband tobacco represents a loss to all Canadians; 

(d) on October 16, 1992, Parker wrote to the then Deputy Minister of National 

Revenue, purportedly expressing concern over the growing problem of S~:~~:lCd 
tobacco. Parker stated that: "The Canadian tobacco industry continues to oppose 

smuggling and to work with authorities on effective means for ending it." The 

Deputy Minister responded to Parker by letter dated October 22, 1992, and 

expressed the department'S appreciation for the cooperation shown by the 
."-;' .... 
/, . ) 

industry "in our joint efforts to combat tobacco smuggling"; 
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(e) on November 13, 1992, Parker wrote to the then Deputy Solicitor General of 

Canada, to advise formally that the CTMC would "be undertaking an information 

campaign aimed at increasing public awareness of smu¥~i'ed and stolen tobacco 

products, how to identify them, and the fitct that sale, purchase and possession of 

such products is illegal"; 

(I) on December 17, 1993, the Director of Taxation & Compliance Control ofRJR-

Macdonald wrote to Revenue Canada Customs & Excise to seek leniency in 

respect of the seizure of product, noting the company's "clean record" and the 

policy of the company to follow all Customs "rules" to the letter at all times. 

(g) on January 13, 1994, Canada's CTV Network broadcast an interview with Parker, 

by crv's Keith Morrison. On air, Morrison made reference to the accusation that 

tobacco companies were alleged or rumoured to be selling directly to smugglers. 

Parker responded: "if you have ... one instance of anyone of the Canadian 

manufacturers selling directly to anybody who is involved in smuggling I think 

you should present the information to the aUlhorities .. .it's flatly not true. Not 

once, not anywhere"; 

(h) on October 23, 1996, Roland Kostantos, Vice President of Finance and 

Administration ofRJR-Macrlonald, wrote to the Department of Finance to discuss 

IUR-Macdonald's position that the tobacco manufacturer's surtax had to be 

removed. He stated: "The smuggling problem [is) now behind us". He also 

stated: "So far there has been only limited production of RJR's Canadian brand 

cigarettes in foreign plants, and such production has been restricted to meeting the 
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needs of consumers outside of Canada. RJR's flagship brand, Export "A" is 

already produced and consumed outside of Canada ... ". 

(i) on December 16, 1996, MSNBC broadcast a report on tobacco snn;ggling in 

Canada. During the broadcast, a CYMC spokesperson denied that the tobacco 

industry played a direct role in the smuggling crisis: "It's not like the industry was 

sitting in a boardroom tlying to think of ways to increase the smuggling"; 

0) on November 19, 1997, Bradley Price, the Director of Taxation and Treasury at 

RJR-Macdonald, wrote to Revenue Canada concerning a number of 

administrative issues involving application of the LXcise Tax Act to RJR­

Macdonald's tobacco products. Price stated that RJR-Maedonald manufactured 

tobacco products were "sold to customers located in Canada for consumption 

within Canada and sold to customers located in foreign jurisdictions for 

consumption outside of Canada." 

(k) on January 24, 1998, Parker was interviewed on CBC Radio by Jason Moscovitz, 

and again denied RJR's involvement in snluggling: " ... And evelY time I've heard 

it - ever since I was retained by the industlY, six or seven years ago - I have said, 

'if you have the slightest evidcnce of improper or illegal behaviour by any of these 

companies - selling to people who weren't licensed, helping anybody evade the 

payment of taxes, etc. -- talk to the authorities.' And fi·om the outset to today, 

there hasn't been a single charge laid - there hasn't been a single piece of factual 

evidence brotlghl forward and when you consider the rabid hatred lhat anti­

tobacco people have for the manufacturers, I think the absence of charges, after 
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all [laughing] these years is eloquent evidence that there is nothing to these 

charges." Parker responded to the allegation that the Canadian tobacco 

manufacturers participated in smuggling to influence Canada to change its policy 

on the taxation of cigarettes by: "utter bloody nonsense! I mean, bring forth a 

piece of eVidence; don't just make that accusation"; 

(I) on June 7, 1998, in an article in the Syracuse Herald American headlined 

"Tobacco Executives had a hand in Smuggling", an RJ. Reynolds spokesman, 

John Singleton, denied the company encouraged or aided smugglers in any way. 

"Clearly, we certainly don't condone smuggling ... We did as much as we could to 

make sure the Canadian government understood what was going on so that they 

could apply any law enforcement remedies they thought were appropriate"; and 

(m) On January 4, 1999, Steven Heard, counsel and spokesman for RJR-Macdonald 

and other RJR Group companies, was quoted in the Globe and Mail and denied 

that RJR Puerto Rico was set up as an off-shore production line to serve 

smug'gJ~rs, asserting that it was "not intendcd to feed the contraband market. It 

sold into the Caribbean Basin"-

124. When in 1998 and 1999, both Thompson and NBI pleaded guilty to criminal charges, the 

RJR Group lamely attempted to distance itself iYom the activities it had orchestrated and from 

which it had benefited. The defcndants deserted "nlOmpson and called him a "rOb'lle employee", 

notwithstanding that he had actcd in conducting the activities described in this claim not only 

with the f111l knowledge of his superiors, RJR·Macdonald, RJR International and RJR Tobacco, 
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but with their agreement, direction and active involvement. He had been personally feted and 

financially rewarded by RJR-Macdonald for what he had accomplished. 

125. RJR's senior U.S. counsel, aftcr pleading NBI guilty in United States District Court in 

December, 1998, statcd, as quoted in the Globe and Mail that: "Northern Brands' actions are 

'inconsistent with the way Reynolds does business. The company is contident that enhanced 

internal controls, monitoring and compliance programs it is putting in place will substantially 

improve its ability to monitor distribution of its products in the future"'. In fact, as described in 

this claim, NBI had been created and operated at the very highest levels of RJR's management, 

specifically to protect the other RJR Group companies and its senior executives from exposure 

and the consequences of their conspiracy. 

126. Not only did the RJR Group makc consistent false denials of involvement, but it 

pretended to assist Canada in its eftorts to combat smuggling, and fraudulently portrayed itself as 

a good corporate citizen. This was done to enhance the plaintitT's reliance upon its dishonest 

statements and misrepresentations, and to cause the plaintiff to misdirect its investigative efforts. 

127. In a letter dated June 6, 1991, to the Special Assistant to the Minister of Revenue, 

Customs & Excise, the CTMC forwarded "Background Notes re Cross-Border Cigarette Trade", 

These materials, provided to the plaintiff with the intention (and effect) that they would be relied 

upon, included a section entitled "Industry Responses". They stated: "the CTMC and its 

member companies have consistently emphasized their willingness to co .. operate in any effective 

program to deal with this problem. Large scale smuggling is not in (be interests of our industry 

and we want to see it brought under control." 
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128. In 1992, R1R.Macdonald executives, including Neumann, made various rcpw"entations 

to the plaintiff that they would makl:l all reasonable efforts to out off sales to sm'ilgglers or black 

market distributors. RJR.Macdonald oxecutives, inoluding Neumann, instigated and attended at 

numerous high level meetings will} government officials to dis()\lsS the smuggling problpn. 

roiterated RJR-Macdonald's purported desire to assist the government in combating smuggling, 

and put forward pmposa\s to end the problem. RJR.Macdollald's principal proposal was always 

the same: the only way to ultimately stop smuggling was to roll back taxes and duties to a level 

on par with the United States. 

l29. In a mockery of the plaintiffs efforts to stop smuggling and enforce its tax laws, the RJR 

Group dispatched the Senior DirectoT, Corporate Security of RJR U.S., to travel to Ottawa in 

September 1992, purportedly to discuss the ways in which RJR could assist Canada with the 

smuggling' problem, RJR's troe purpose was to learn what Canada knew, so that steps could be 

taken to avoid detection. 

130. The defendants went 10 extraordinary lengths in an attempt to legitimize their false 

denials and misstatements. Their agent. the CTMC. commissioned purported in-depth 

inv"stigative rep0l1s from forensic accounting flnns in an alternpt to clothe their stateroellts with 

objectivity and credibility. These reports, provided to tho plaintiff, consistently omitted any 
i 

reference to RJR's role in starting, supplying, supporting and directing the smuggling of tobacco 

products, tal<. not paid, into Canada. The plaintiff relied upon these and other fraudulent 

misrepresentations. The plaintiff was misled by the defendants' fraudulent concealment. 

131. The campaign of misrepresentation, deceit and denial was carried on from the CTMC to 

RJR-Macdonald aod tl1rougb to the highest exeeutlve levels within the RJR Group. On April 24, 
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1998, Steven Goldstone ("Goldstone"), then Chairman and CEO ofRJR Tobacco. responded to a 

proposal of (he United States government to act, as Canada had done, to deter children fTom 

smoking by raising taxes, Goldstone expressly wamed that the "unintended consequence of such 

a policy would be to create a black market that would potentially destroy any effort to control the 

availability of tobeC«) to children". He analogized his point to the situation in Canada, His 

statement was misleading - the black market was not the unintended consequence of policy. 

Rather, it was the consequence, and the if,tend'cd one, of the RJR Group which itself had 

established, supplied and supportIOd RJR channels of distribution so it could directly benefit from 

this illegal scheme in Canada. 

Criminnl Proceedings in the United States 

132. On June 20.1997, the U,S. Attorney in the Northem District of New York illdicted 21 

individuals, alleging a conspiracy to defraud the United States and Canada by aiding and abetting 

smuggling of tobacco and other produ<,:ts. Many of the accused later emerged as co"conspirators 

with the defendants in the smuggling distribution chain. 

133. Nineteen of the 21 indicted individuals in due course pleaded guilty, The guilty included 

the principals of LBL, its successor company. VTN, and those who operated the Pine' 

Partnership. 

[34, In November 1998. Larry Miller, Lewis Tavano and Robert, Tavano pleaded guilty in 

United States District Court to engaging in a smllggling scheme to defraUd Canada of taxes. The 

TaVUflQS admitted that the scheme continued from 1991 through 1998. 
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135. On December 22, 1998, the U.s. Attomey in the Nonhem District of New York filed (lO 

lnfonnation charging NBI with ulding and abetting in the importation into the U.S. of 

merchandise by false and fraudulent practices, being Canadian Export "Au cigarettes intended for 

the Canadian market. NBl waived prosocution by indictment and pleaded guilty that day to facts 

that revealed ils involvetnent in the sm~gglillg distribution chain described in this claim. 

136. On February 28, 1999 the u.s. Attomey in th" Northern District of New York filed an 

Indictment charging Leslie Thompson, the RJR.-Macdonald employee who had boell sent to NBl 

to become its Director of Sales, with conspiring to conduct financial transactions affecting 

interstate commerce will1 the proceeds of "specified onlawful activity", being a wire fraud 

scheme to defraud Canada of tax revenue, which financial transactions were intended to promote 

this underlying criminal activity. The indictment described the s!huggling scheme of the 

defendants. On March 25, 1 999,Thompson pleaded guilty. 

Cl'iminal Proceedln!1;9 in Canada 

137. In 1999, Thompson was charged in Canada. 

138. On february 2, 2000, 'Thompson pleaded guilty in the Ontario Court of Justice. 

Specifically, Thompson admitted to entering into a crimln~J conspiracy to commit fraud by 

agreeing to deal in cigarettes and fine cut tobacco in a manner which fraudulently deprived the 

plaintiff, Ontario and Quebec ofrevenue of a value exceeding $5,000.00. 

139. Tho agreed statement of facts filed with the court upon Thompson's gUilty ple~ confirms. 

his admission to the following facts: 

(a) tile smuggling w.s concentrated aro\\I1d Akwesasne; 
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(b) an increase in exports of cigarettes nnd fine cut tobacco by RJR-Mnooonald's 

competitors to the United States and a direct corresponding increase in their "real" 

market share of Canadian domestic consumption, threatened RJR-Macdonald. As 

a result it nctively pursued this market; 

< (c) at the time, senior executives of RJR-Macdonald knew that this U.S. market was 

simply the first step in a chain which resulted in cigarettes and fine cut tobacco 

being smuggled back into Canada and sold tM free 011 a black mnrket in Ontario, 

Quebec and elsewhere in Canada; 

(d) initially, Thompson had responsibility fot Sales of Canadian tobacco products to 

legitimate U.S. customers such as dllty free stoTes, He loaded Ill' these U.S. 

accounts knOwing tha.t these cMllOCed sales wel\c just the first step in the chain 

which resulted in the products being smll'ggied back into Canada. Other 

executives at RJR·Macdonald were involved, knew of these events and 

encouraged, participated in and approved this type ofbusilless; 

(e} L13L was accepted as a direct cnstomer ofRJR-Macdonald in March 1992 and, to 

the knowledge of TllOrnpson and other RJR-Macdonald senior executives, its 

customers were also smugglCTs physically transporting the tobacco products 

across the CanadalUnited States border or wholesalers who pTovided tile product 

to smugglers. After transfening the cigarettes and tobacco products through FTZs 

in Akwesasne and into Canada, they were transported within Canada to urban 

centres and distributed to a large network of contr~band retailers who sold the 
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products nut of the back of trucks and cars and "under the counter" in 

convenience stnres, all taxes unpaid: and 

(f) in an attempt tn distance themselves from conduct which represented acts in 

furtherance of the conspiracy. the RJR Group incorporated NET. 

140. On December 31, 1999, Robert Tavano, one of the principals of bolll LBL and 'Pine 

Partnership, was charged with and pleaded guilty to entering Into II ctiminal conspiracy to 

commit fraud depriving the plaintiff and Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario of revenue of 

a value exceeding $5,000.00. Tavano's guilty plea nnd agreed statement of facts contain the 

same material admissions as those found in 'Thompson's plea and agreed statement of facts. 

Specifically, Tavano admitted that he was keenly aware that senior executives at RJR­

Macdonald knew of the slUuggling, and provided LBL with cigarettes and fine cut tobacco in 

furtherance of a criminal agreement with LBL and Tavano to commit fraud. 

14J. Robert Tavano admitted that he, LBL andlor Pino Partnership purchased enormous 

quantities of cigarettes and fine cut tobaooo fiom RJR-Macdollald and/or its affiliates all of 

which products were smuggled back into Canada. 

RJR Transfers Key Personuel Offshore lind Destroys EVidence 

142. In a further attempt to insulate> assets and conceal the illegal activities of the RJR Group, 

directly following upon the criminal Charges, many senior executives of RJR Group companies, 

including Neumann, were transferred to Geneva, Switzerland, to shelter behind It favourable 

juridical olimate there. These transfers were PArt of the defendants' efforts intended to create 
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further obstacles for the plaintiff in obtaining information and evidence in supiJOli of this claim. 

l11ese transfers fomlcd part oftbe fraudulel1t concc!)lmcnt oflhe defendants' \llllllwful activities. 

l43. RJR entered into agreements with its ellecutivcs and employees who had palticipated in 

the conspiracy, to pay them eX\Taordinary amounts and award them other benefits in order to 

ensure their silence and co-operation and further conceal and cover up the unlawful conduct in 

whieJl tile conspirators had been engaged. 

Spoliation 

144. The defendants continued their efforts at concealment. A massive destruction of 

documents took place at the offices of RJR-Ma;:donald in 'Toronto during the summer of 1998. 

145. In addition, NBI had a standing policy. dictated by Lang personally, that to the greatest 

extent po~~lble business was to be conducted orally, without written documentation, including 

without electronic messages. Moreover, Lang directed that the policy at NBl was that- non­

critical documents were to be destroyed as soon as possible. In fllct, such a large proportion of 

ordinary course b\lSiness documents (Which evidenced the conspiracy) Was being destroyed on a 

weekly basis, that Thompson complained he could not complete his weekly sales reports. 

146. As earlier detailed in this claim. the Minutes of R1R-Macdonald's Operating Committee 

and the Holmes presentation of the smuggling plan were intentionally destroyed by or on behalf 

ofthe defendants. 

147. The defendants destroyed dOatllUt."'J]ts to defeat the plaintiff's claim, to avoid detection and 

to escape liability, judgmellt and 8xecuti,)U. The defendants c<>mmitted the (ort of spoliation. 



The destruction of documents was part and parcel of (he defendams' lX)1\.p;,.no)' and the 

continued fraudulent concealment oftheir activities. 

Summary of Omspiracy 

148. 1'he defendants actively conspired to maintain and increase RJR's sales of Canadian 

tobacco products, including in the smuggling market, 81ld to force Ihe roll-back of t(!Xes. 'nley 

did this by RrR-Macdonald evading export la1<cS and duties and by conspiring to evade, and 

aiding and abetting the evasion of, import dnties and taxes on thosc products. 'They used 

unlawful means, including but Ilot limited to fraud and deceit, the fraudulent concealment of 

their conspiracy and their other tortious conduct, fraudulent misrepresentatiolls made \0 the 

plaintiff, and spoliation. 

149. Further particulars of the unlawful meal1S employed by the defendants and tbeir co­

conspirators in concert include; 

(a) the offence of smuggling under s. 159 of the Customs Act, providing that it is an 

offence to smuggle into Canado. any goods subject to duties, or any goods the 

importation of which is prohibited, controlled or regulated; 

(b) defrauding the plaintiff and the public of propet1y ilnd money (specincally, of 

taxes and duties payable) by deceit and falsehood, contrary to s. 380 of Ihe 

Criminal Code, as described in this claim, and including: 

(I) the campaign of deception and misinformation described in this claim; 

(il) fraudulent mislabelling of cigarette and tobacco packages, cartons, and 

boxes; 
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(iii) fraudulent domestic consumption reports; and 

(iv) fraudulent excise forms, which contained misrepresentations that the 

products were intended for genuine expOlt; 

(c) procuring, counselling and soliciting the commission of illegal smugglmg, 

contraty to s. 22 of the Criminal Code. The defendants set oul to ensure (hat 

illegal smuggling was committed and took the appropriate and necessary steps to 

produce the commission of this offence, thereby procuring illegal smUggling by 

their own endeavour. They solicited the commission of illegal smuggling by 

agreeing to seck out known smugglers, supplying their products to them, and 

encouraging and adVising them to funnel those products into the black martel. 

They counselled the criminal act of smuggling by encouraging the smugglers to 

carry 011 with their illegal activities, providing advicc as to the appropriate areas in 

Canada in to which to smuggle the goods, and by the olher means described in 

this claim; 

(d) aiding in the commission of the offence ofsmufig!ing, as defined in s. 21(1)(b) of 

the Criminal Code. by: 

(I) deliberately supplying smugglers with the means of committing their 

crimes, with the purpose and immediate intention of aiding them to do so 

and with the substantial certainty that all the cigarettes sllppJied to them 

would be unlawfully smllggi'ed into Canada; 



(ii) appointing known smugglers as distributors of RJR-Ma"donald tobacco 

products in the Unit<;<l States, without subjecting them to the ordinary 

rigourous and lengthy customer approvals process, with the express 

purpose and intent of assisting them in their criminal endeavour to 

smuggle cigarettes into Canada; 

(iii) arranging their affairs with 111e express purpose of concealing the identities 

of known smugglers from (he Governments of Canada, the United States 

and l'ucrto Rico, with the express purpose of aiding those smugglers in 

their lllegal endeavours; 

(iv) providing their co-conspira\Qrs with demographic, marketing and sales 

data relating to the consumption of tobacco prodUcts in Canada, with the 

purpose and intent of ensuring that, through the conspiracy, cigarettes lind 

tobacco were rO\1tcd to key markets within Canada a.nd were received by 

the customers for whom they were targeted; 

(v) improving cash flows and profits of thclr co-conspirators by writing down 

or writing off tobacco inventories, providing discounts and rebates and 

assisting with capital improvements such as warehousing lind refrigeration 

units in which tlle tobacco products were stored; and 

(vi) providing RJR personnel and logistical and accounting support to facilitate 

the transfer ofsrriuggled tobacco products; 
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(e) abetting the offence ofsmllggling, as defined in s. 21{l)(c) of the Criminal Code, 

by: 

(i) meeting with smugg\Crs and encouraging them in their criminal 

endeavour; 

(ii) ongoing visits by RJR Group executives, including Thompson, Holmes 

and Frngomeni, to the Akwesasne reserve, tn nbscrve and report on the 

illegal smuggling as it was being committed, and to ellcollrage the 

smugglers to continue their illegal endeavour; 

(iii) treating smugglers as prized cnstomers, by fraternizing with them, 

spending lavishly on entertainment, and providing them with gifts and 

privileges; and 

(iv) encouraging known smugglers to pUI'Cbasc massive quantities of RJR­

Macdonald cigarettes, even before those cigarettes were manufactured, as 

described above; 

(t) aiding and abetting a conspiracy within the meaning ofs. 2J(l)(b) and (e) ofllle 

Crimina! Code. 

(g) being in possession of pmperty and proceeds knOWing that those proceeds were 

derived from the commission ofthc illegal acts described in tbis Claim, Within the 

meaning of s. 462.3 of the C.·iminal Code and contrary to s. 163.1 oftbe Customs 

Aot and s, U6.1 of the Excise Acr; 
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(h) money laundering, contrary [0 S. 462.31 of [he en/ninai Code, by transferring and 

disposing of the proceeds of crime with an intent to conceal and convert those 

proceeds. The RJR Group funnelled its illegal profits through various Caribbean 

intennediaries, RJR lntcmational, NBl and other RJR affiliatcs to make the 

proceeds appear upon receipt by RJR-Macdonald as ordinary course payments 

reoeived from a legitimate source. Moreover, the defendants concealed and 

converted the proceeds from NBl's smuggliilg operation by converting the profits 

from United States currency Into Canadian currency, and vice versa, in 

furtherance of the schorn,,; 

0) the creation and operation ofNBI, a sham corporation, the purpose for which was 

to facilitate the conspiracy and insulate the defendants and the assets of the 

operating companies from detection and liability; 

G) the sham export~ of Canlldian tobacco products from Cau!\da with the purpose and 

intent to snnlggle these products back into Canada, tax not paid, When the 

defendants knew thcre was no market for Canadian cigarettes outside Canada am) 

When they intended the tobacco to be consumed in Canada; 

(k) the fraudulent misrepresentations on packaging, in documents and orally as 

described in this claim, that the cigarettes and tobacco products were destined for 

consumption olltside Canada, that tax was not payable and that the defendants 
, , 

were no! Involved in smuggling activities; and 

(I) spoliation. 
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150. Tbe defendants knew that injury to the plaintiff would likely ensue from their conduct, in 

tbe form of unpaid taxes and duties, lost taxes and duties IIlJd the costs of investigating their 

unl~wfuJ activities. Their actions were directed towards the plaintift In addition their 

predominant pUipose was to il\i\lre the plaintiff by oausing the roll·back of taxes and by 

depriving (he plaintiff oftaxes and duties. nnd they succeeded in doing so. 

Unlust Enrichment 

151. The RJR Group was unjustly enriched by the unlawful conduct described in this claim 

including: 

(a) fraudulent conduct and deceit; 

(b) conspiracy; 

( c) breacb of statutory obligations to remit lawful duties and taxes; 

(d) fraudulent misrepresentations and concealment; and 

(e) spoliation. 

152. The RJR Group Was enriched to the extent of the profits and benefits they earned as a 

result of their unlawful activities. There was no lawful or juristic reason for this (,"Jlrichmenl. 

153. The plaintiff sutTered a corresponding deprivation, and is entitled to a disgorgement of 

the profits and benefits which the defendants enjoyed, and to the amount of taxes and duties of 

which it was deprived. 
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rug"t of Action Pursu!!)!t to Stlltute 

154. Pursuant to s. III (I) and (2) of the Excise Act, all duties of excise or license fees payable 

thereunder are recoverable at any time, with full costs of suit, as a debt due 10 Her Majesty. 

l55. Similarly, section 82 of the Excise Tax Act provides that all taxes, penalties, interest or 

other soms payable thereunder are debts due to Hel' Majesty in Right of Canada and recoverable 

as such. 

156. The tobacco products which R1R-Macdonald pUIported to export to the United States 

were never intended by fUR for genuine export. It was )lever intended that they enter into the 

eommexce of tile United States, and they did not. RJR always intendGd that the tobacco products 

would reUlm to their country of origin, and (hey did. RJR-Macdonald shipped tobacco products 

frOIn Canada knowing and intending that they would bc smuggled back into Canada. RJR­

Macdonald is liable for taxes and dutie~ under the Excise Act and the Excise Pax Act. for all 

tobacco products manufactured in Canada and pUIportedly exported to the United States, in 

furtherance of the illegal conspiracy described in this claim. 

157. The plaintiff pleads and relies upon these statutory provisions Md each of them and 

brings this action against IUR-Macdonald in reliance upon these sections. This defendant is 

liable to tile plaintiffllnder these statutory Pl·ovisions. 

Vicarious LlAbllltx 

158. The RJR Group is vicariOUsly liable for the conduct of its directors, officers and 

employees. The other employees, officers and directors of RJR Group companies referred to by 

name in this claim are co-conspirators of tho defendants. TIle RJR Group is vicariously liable for 
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their conduct and fo], the conduct of the other employees, offic"rs and directors whose names and 

illegal activities are solely within the knowledge of the defendants, and wllo participated in the 

Ilolawfill acts described in this claim. 

159. The acts and statements of Lang and Ihe other RJR Group employees, officers and 

directors referred to by name in this claim, and of those who are within the knowledge of the 

defendants, were carried out and were made acting within th~ scope of their employment aud 

their duties as employees, officers and/or directors of the RJR Group and fOr whom the IUR 

Group is ill law responsible. 

Frll.udulent Conveyance 

160. A series of corporate reorganizations und intet'-company trunsactions undertaken between 

1999 and 2001 relating to the assets and business ofRJR-Mncdonald were conveyances intended 

to defeat, hinder, delay or defraud the creditors or others of RJR-Macdonald (including the 

plaintif!) of their just and lawful actions, suits, debts, accounts, damages, penalties or forfeitures 

and were and are void against such persons and their assigns. 

161. RJR·Macdonald and Japan Tobacco (together witll its related entities named in this claim 

in paragraph 12) (collectively the "Fraudulent ConveyMcc Defendants") orchestrated a complex 

series of corporate reorganizations, tho particulars of which are within the knowledge of the 

Fraudulent Conveyance Defendants but not the plaintiff, 

162. RJR-Macdonatd was a federally incol1'orated company until 1999. Subsequently: 

(a) it was continued as a Nova Scotia corporation; 
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(b) it wns amalgamated with a new entity incorporated following the JTl trlUl"action 

described above Ilnd known as JT Nova Scotia Corporation; 

(c) the shares of RJR-Macdonald were transferred to an entity called JT Canada LLC 

II rnc. ("U .. C 11") which was u wholly owned subsidiary of another new entity, JT 

Canada LLC Jnc. ("JT LLC"); 

(d) JT LLC was wholly owned by JT lntel'llational Holding B.Y., a Netherlands 

corporation; 

(e) the trademarks owned by RJR .. Macdonald, which were assets of value, were 

transferred to another new entity known as JTI-Macdonald TM Corp., newly 

incorporated in 1999 ("TM Holdeo"); 

(1) JT LLC then loaned $).2 billion to 1M Holdeo, taking as security the trademarks 

pledged in return. The trademarks were assigned a value of$I.2 billion; 

(g) TM Hotdco then loaned the funds to a predecessor corporation of lTI-Macdonald 

Corp; and 

(b) in 2000, JT LLC lent $410 million to lTI-Macdollald Corp. and received 

C',orporate debentures in retUrn. TIle debentures were then transferred to TM 

Holdeo in exchange for notes payable to JT LLC, in the aggregate amount of 
.' 

$410 million. 

163. By correspondence dated )all\lary 30, 2002. RJR-lY!acdollald's auditors, Deloitte & 

Touche, e~'pressly admitted to the plaintiff that the 1999 asset transfers (including of the 
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tr~delllarks) from a predecessor entity to the defendant JTl-MacdonaJd Corp. was carrIed out "for 

creditor proofing purposes". That admission is binding on the Fraudulent Conveyance 

Defendants. 

164, In conjunction with the tral1sactions described above, Japan Tobacco effected II further 

complicated series of inter-coI]lora1e loans and transactions among its affiliates, designed to 

defeat and hinder the enforcement of any judgment in this action, 

165, The particulars of these transactions are within the knowledge of the Fraudulent 

Conveyance Defendants. Their effect was to create a circular arrangement pursuant to which 

each of the entities was encumbered by secured debt in favour of a related party, JT LLC was 

indebted to RJR-Macdonald. RJR.-·Macdonald was indebted to TM Haldeo. TM Holdco was 

indebted to JT LLC, All loans were secured. This arrangement was a further attempt to insulate 

the assets of japan Tobacco and was designed to effeot a ciroular security alTangement. 

l66, TIle plaintiff is entitled to a declaration that this H"d other conveyances stripping RJR­

Macdonald of its assets anMor submerging them under related party debt were intended to defeat 

and hinder the enforcement of a judgment in this action, All transactions should be unwound 

and any necessary tracing orders granted. 

167. The plaintiff pleads and relies UpOll the Fraudulent Conveyances Act, R,S.O, 1990, c, 

F,29, 

168, Japan Tobacco caused and directed tho above transactions, knowing that the RJR Group, 

and in particular RJR-Macdonald, were liable to the plaintiff for the wrongful conduct described 
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in this claim, and with the purpose of defeating the plailltitl's ability to <eoover on ~lIy judgl>1cnl 

subsequently obtained by the plaintiff. 

169, Japan Tobacco conspired and agrero with its sUbsidiaries and affiliates, JT International 

B.V., JT International Holding B,V., JT Canada LLC 111e., JT Canada LLC II Inc" JT 

international (BVl) Canada Inc., 11' International SA and JTl·Macdonald TM Corp. that the 

assets of RJR-Macdol1ald would be conveyed to and among these affiliates, to hinder and defeat 

the plaintiff and other creditors. 

170. lOR-Macdonald's assets were conveyed to the affiliates and subsidiades of Japan 

Tobacco as described above and through other means known to the Fraudulent COllveyance 

Defendants but unknown to the plaintiff, at the direction of Japan Tobacco, and with the 

agreement of Illose affiliates and subsidiaries. 

171. 111e purpose of this agreemcnt WIIS to hann the plaintiff, by making it impossible for the 

plaintiff to enforce and recover under any judgment against RJR-Macdonald. 

Punitive Damagc~ 

172. The defendants should pay pWlitive damages to the plaintiff. The defendants are law­

breakers. They deliberately and with impunity conspired to break Canada's laws and they acted 

unlawfully for illicit gain. TIle RJR Group made fantastic profits from its actions. They 

conspirro to conceal their conduct. They set about to defeat government policy designed to 

discourage the spread of "moking, Which they knew to be harmful, including to Canada's youth. 

TIley succeeded in their etfot1s, and deprived Canada ofmoro than a billion dollars in taxes and 

dllties. 
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Service Out$ide Ontario 

J 73. This claim may be served outside Ontario pursuant to Rules 17.02 (g), (h), (0), (p) and (r) 

of the Rules of Civil Procedure. 

The plain!lffproposes that this action be tried at the City of Toronto, Province ofOnlano. 

August 13,2003 LENCZNER SLAGHT ROYCE 
SMITH GRlFFlN 

Barristers 
Suite 2600 
130 Adelaide Street West 
Toronto, Ontario 
MSH 31'5 

Ronald G. Slaght, Q.C. S65-~929 
Peter J. Osborne 865-3094 

Matthew Sammon S65-l0S7 

Tol: (416) 86S-950() 
F"x: (4.16) 865-9010 

Solicitors for the Plaintiff, 
The Attorney General of Canada 
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APPENDIX" A" TO THE STATEMENT OF CLAIM 

R.J; irnYNOLDS 'l'OBACCO NORl'BERNB 
BOLDlNGS, (Nc. -----------... lNTERNATION 
(RJR TOBACCO) (NRl) 

........ YNO_ ~ [' .. ,. """NOW",OBACCO 
lNTERNATIONAL, INC. COMPANY (RJR U.S.) 
(RJR IN'fERNATIONAL) 

RJR·MACDONALD RJ. REYNOLDS 
INC. TOBACCO CO. 

(RJR-MACDONALD) (R,In·l'UER'fO RICO) 
L..-_ --

RANDS 
AL,INC. 


